VI.

%% DEVELOPMENT
& AUTHORITY

MINUTES

Board of Directors Meeting
Development Authority Conference Room
and via Zoom Meeting
August 14, 2024, at 9:30 a.m.

Abe Ashton, President

Doug Long — Left at 10:03 a.m.

Amy Orndoff, Vice President — arrived 9:34 a.m.

John Reisenweber

Mary Sue Catlett, Secretary

Hoy Shingleton

Brad Close, Treasurer

Brandon Smith

Jason Barrett

Donna Van Metre

Margie Bartles

Patrick Winkelman

Kevin Knowles

ABSENT: Eddie Gochenour, PJ Orsini

OTHER ATTENDEES: Jennifer Smith, Executive Director; Leslie Gantt, Economic Development

Coordinator; Candace Dalton, Office Administrator

GUESTS: Kenneth Barton, Legal Counsel, Steptoe & Johnson; Chris Strovel, Senator Capito’s
Office; Tara Showen, Property Management, First Management Group; Jim Linsenmeyer, West

Virginia Economic Development

Call to Order — President Ashton called the meeting to order at 9:32 a.m.

Determination of Members Present and Existence of a Quorum — President Ashton

reported that a quorum was present.

Proof and Filing by Secretary of Notice of Meeting — President Ashton confirmed the
meeting agenda was posted to the public Wednesday, August 7, 2024.

Reading and Disposal of Prior Month Meeting Minutes - The Board reviewed the minutes of
the last Board Meeting on July 10, 2024. No corrections to the minutes were requested

and the minutes were accepted.

Public Comments — President Ashton welcomed guests. There were no comments.

President’s Report — President Ashton welcomed two new board members Donna Van
Metre and Patrick Winkleman. He also announced that Project White has gone to closing.
He said that in the packets was a thank you note received from the Berkeley County
Backpack Program for the three free months of rent. He also reminded the board that
there will be a board orientation following the September board meeting.

Finance/ Audit Committee Report — Chairman Close stated that the Finance & Audit

Committee met before the board meeting. He said the committee reviewed the financials
and along with Ms. Smith they will refine the cash needs and timeline for funding of current
and future projects. There were no questions.

Mr. Long made a motion to accept the Financial Report as presented, subject



to audit. Seconded by Mr. Reisenweber. Motion approved.

VIl.  Reports of Chairpersons of Standing Committees

A.

Vill.

Executive — President Ashton stated that the Executive Committee did not meet. There
were no questions.

Business Development — In the absence of Chairman Orsini, Ms. Smith said that she
would review more information about projects in Executive Session. She said she
continues to work heavily with Project White and that they will be making their
announcement later in the month. She also mentioned that some current project items
would be addressed during New Business.

Marketing — Chairman Smith stated he was not at the last Marketing Committee
Meeting but that he understood Build-Up Berkeley and the Quality-of-Life Surveys were
discussed. He handed things over to Ms. Smith who said that on Monday the finalist had
been selected noting that one judge was absent. Ms. Smith said that sixteen participants
entered, and eleven finalists were chosen due to a tie. She will be contacting the finalist
this week. There were no questions.

Government Affairs and Infrastructure — Chairman Reisenweber said he is pleased to
chair this committee. The committee will be focusing on how to address the water and
infrastructure issues. He said that he will work with the committee members to choose a
standing date for meetings. There were no questions.

Property Management — Chairwoman Bartles stated that the Property Management Committee
did not meet. She said that reports provided by Ms. Showen are in the board packets. Chairwoman
Bartles said one thing that jumps out on the reports is the total gross income for July of this year is
a lot less than last year. She stated that this was due to a total payout from the VA last year. She
said we have three single offices in the 300 building still available to be leased. She also stated that
she spoke with Ms. Showen about reviewing all the vendors in our agreement to make sure we are
getting the best services and that will be completed before the October board meeting. President
Ashton stated that Ms. Smith is saving us $36,000 a year simply by reviewing one of the current
contracts and getting someone new. There were no questions.

IX. Report of Staff

A. Executive Director — Ms. Smith provided a report in the packet. Ms. Smith said
she is working on several projects. She received the 2024 Industrial Access Road Grant
for Commercial Metals Company in 2024. She is now working on the 2025 Industrial
Access Road Grant. More about this will be brought up under new business but
explained that each county can receive up to $400,000 from the state for the IAR. Ms.
Smith continues to work on the West Virginia Economic Conference and said she is
looking forward to hosting this event. She continues to work on Build-Up Berkeley and
mentioned that there will be a mixer here on August 29 to meet the finalist. She invited
the board to the event. She said that she is still working with Monument Companies,
and they have started to pay back their stormwater loan. She said the Business
Development Committee interviewed and ranked both applicants who bid for
Architecture and Design Services. She said that Thrasher Engineering ranked #1 and CEC

2



#2. She said under New Business there is a contract and task orders to be reviewed for
these services for approval. There were no questions.

B. Economic Development Coordinator — Ms. Gantt said that Boost Berkeley was
well attended, and that Ms. Smith spoke about Build-Up Berkeley. She said the next
Boost Berkeley will be in October and the speaker will be Michael Boyd with the Small
Business Development Center. Ms. Gantt continues to help with planning Build-Up
Berkeley. She did a Business Spotlight on BPG-USA, formerly Berryville Graphics, and she
completed a Nonprofit Reel on Habitat for Humanity. She said that Habitat plans to open
the Restore sometime in August or September at Old Courthouse Square. She also met
Carissa Tress the new administrator at James Rumsey. Ms. Gantt has a complete report
in the board packet. There were no questions.

X. New Business —

A. Consideration of Mountaineer Gas Easement — Ms. Smith passed around drawings of the gas
line. She said this project is to help with Project White but said that this will help all our
property on Consumer Dr. Ms. Smith said that CEC is the engineering firm working with
Project White. Mr. Barton also stated that he has reviewed the easement. Ms. Smith is
asking for President Ashton to sign the easement with Mountaineer Gas.

Mr. Close made a motion for President Ashton to sign the Easement and Right of Way for
Mountaineer Gas as presented. Seconded by Mr. Reisenweber.

B. FY 2025 IAR Grant for CMC — Ms. Smith is asking for approval to go to the County
Commissioners for a resolution to apply for the FY 2025 Industrial Access Road Grant for
Commercial Metal Company.

Mr. Reisenweber made a motion for Ms. Smith to go to the County Commissioners for a
resolution to apply for the 2025 IAR Grant for CMC. Seconded by Ms. Bartles.

C. Consideration and approval of Thrasher Engineering Agreement and Task Orders — Ms.
Smith said the agreement is between the Authority and Thrasher. Ms. Smith said that Mr.
Barton has reviewed the agreement. As mentioned earlier, Thrasher was ranked #1 so this is
the agreement to move forward with them for engineering services. The first task order is
for project management support for the CMC project. That is not to exceed $5000 without
further review. Task order #2 is for the access road. Ms. Smith said this is a huge project and
Thrasher’s design, and engineering services are needed. Ms. Smith also mentioned that
CMC will be added to the TIF so some reimbursement is possible. There was discussion.

Ms. Catlett made the motion to have President Ashton sign the Thrasher Engineering
Agreement and for approval of Task Orders #1 Project Management Support for CMC
Project and #2 CMC Industrial Access Road Project. Seconded by Mr. Reisenweber.

XIl. Other Business - There was no other business.
Xl. Executive Session

Mr. Shingleton made a motion to enter Executive Session at 10:00 a.m. to confer with

3



counsel on real estate matters. Mr. Knowles seconded the motion. Motion approved. The
board returned to open session at 10:05 a.m. No action was taken during Executive Session.

XIl. Member Informational Reports and Announcements —

Ms. Orndoff announced that the Senior Center will be hosting a celebratory dinner in recognition
of the ladies of WISH who gave a significant grant to the Senior Center. Tickets and sponsorship
opportunities are available.

Mr. Smith mentioned that he is having his Third Annual Freedom Day event for veterans. If anyone
is interested in supporting or sponsoring this event they can reach out to his office.

Mr. Knowles mentioned that the city received, for the third year in a row, the All-Star Community
Award for the Monument Project.

XIll. Adjournment - There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 10:05 a.m.
Respectfully submitted,

Mary Sue Catlett Abraham Ashton
Secretary President



